1994

# Ka Ae Park v. Park K. Jun and Ester Young Ja Jun : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION OF THE APPELLATE COURT

This is an appeal from a final Order of the District Court in a civil proceeding. The Utah Supreme Court poured this case over to the Utah Court of Appeals for disposition on or about September 21, 1994.

II.  
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

There is only one issue in this appeal and that is whether the trial judge abused his discretion in denying Defendants due process and equal protection guarantees in granting Plaintiffs Judgment, striking Defendants' answer and dismissing Defendants' counterclaim with prejudice on August 9, 1993.

A trial court abuses its discretion if there is "no reasonable basis for the decision." Crookston v. Fire Ins. Exch. 860 P.2d 937, 938 (Utah 1993). A trial judge's determination will be reversed if a ruling is so unreasonable that it can be classified as arbitrary and capricious or a clear abuse of discretion. Kunzler v. O'dell, 855 P.2d 270, 275 (Ut. App. 1993).

III.  
DETERMINATIVE PROVISIONS

United States Constitution Fourteenth Amendment and Utah State

Constitution Section Seven.

IV.  
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a case about poverty. As the Court can see from the Appendix numerous statements by Defendants Paul K. and Ester Jun support their claim of poverty.

The first two indications of a problem occur early in the case. The Court will note that a Default Certificate was entered on the 7th day of December, 1992 (Rd.18). The Answer and Countersuit in this matter were filed the same date, that is, December 7, 1992. The parties stipulated to setting aside the default, the facts of which are discussed in the Memorandum in support of Motion for Relief from Default Order (Rd.33) wherein it is declared that neither Defendant speaks English and one of the parties was in Korea until December 30, 1992. No translator could be had until December 4th. Based thereon, attorney for Plaintiff stipulated to relief from Default Judgment (Rd.35) and an Order granting Defendant's Motion for Relief from Default Judgment was granted by the Court (Rd.36).

On the 2nd day of January, 1993 Plaintiff delivered some very simple Interrogatories (Rd.41). Defendant requested and was given an extension of time in which to answer said interrogatories based on the fact that Defendants were in Korea (Rd.42) Defendants' attorney was unable to contact them in Korea because of communications difficulties. Defendants' attorney put a notice into the Court file (Rd.55) declaring that he has lost touch with Defendants and that they were stuck in Korea and unable to return.

Based on Plaintiff's Motion for Sanctions the Court in a

Minute Entry dated July 15, 1993 declares "the Court is of the opinion that said (sanctions) (are) justified based upon the fact that in this case the default of the Defendants was originally taken and then set aside at their request and Defendants now refuse to participate in discovery causing additional delay and expense to the Plaintiff".

The declaration of the facts appears in the Affidavit submitted by the undersigned to the Court (Rd.69 et. seq.) explaining that the Defendants were in Seoul, Korea, that they were supposed to back on time, that numerous calls had resulted in no clear understanding of their schedule and efforts to intervene in three-way calls between Defendants Jun, their English speaking daughter who lives in Buenos Aires, Argentina and the undersigned were also frustrated. Because of this difficulty the undersigned anticipated withdrawing from this case (Rd.70).

On August 10, 1993 due to the diligent efforts of the undersigned, additional material relating to Defendants' Motion for Relief from Default Judgment was obtained (Rd.84 et seq.) In that document the undersigned the Court that the maximum dispatch in this matter was observed by all parties but they fell victim to a breakdown in communications which resulted from the fact that Defendants spoke no English, had fled to Korea as a result of the social incapacity they suffered as a result of this lawsuit, which incapacity will be discussed shortly, and the matter is discussed at length in Defendants' Motion for Relief from Default Judgment (Rd.91) which demonstrates with attachments that the bilingual



daughter was in Buenos Aires, she had received the interrogatories in question, discussed same with her father, and returned answers which were unusable. Those answers which the daughter and the father had developed without assistance from the attorney are included on pages 96 through 106 of the Record and are attached hereto as Appendix A. In addition, other factual issues which are controverted appeared before the Judge at this time, including the fact that the parties were unable to make contact, that the issue of the default was subject to the stipulation of the parties, and the fact that Defendant Jun was the pastor of the Korean Baptist Church and was required to defend himself on the all the issues for the sake of his reputation. As the Court can see from the Affidavit of Pastor Jun (Rd.164-165) that he lost his position as Pastor of the Korean Baptist Church as a result of slanders told by Plaintiffs against him and others, and that as a result, he has been without income and been unable to secure income. This is a recapitulation of the story of Defendants' financial condition which had previously been reported to the Court.

Further, and most importantly, Defendants demonstrated again, as they had in the Record at page 23-24, that Ka Ae Park had previously issued an affidavit (attached hereto in Appendix A.) whereby she had specifically denied under oath that she had loaned the money to Defendants, which money she was trying to recover. In fact, she states in her Affidavit that she is part owner of the fashion business and is a co-owner with Defendant. This is entirely opposite to her claims in her Complaint. In her Complaint

she declares she made a loan to Defendants Jun and in her Affidavit she declares that she made an investment as part owner. This demonstrates that the Juns did in fact have a meritorious claim which was cut short by the Default Judgment of the Court.

The Default Judgment was based partially in fact that the "Court is convinced that Defendants are simply playing games with the Plaintiffs and with the Court". (Rd.88). The Court responding to the pleas of Defendants agreed to oral argument on Defendant's Motion for Relief from Default Judgment and based upon the arguments the Court ordered that Defendants Motion for Relief from Judgment and Order will be granted if Defendants comply by December 15, 1993 (Rd.133). Additional legal expenses were marshalled by Plaintiffs' attorney and the Court held (Rd.138) that relief would be granted "provided Defendants complied fully with the conditions set forth below no later than December 15, 1993" and said conditions were that Defendants provide full and complete answers to pending interrogatories and pay Plaintiff for her attorney the sum of \$1,035.00 in certified funds, or their equivalent for sanctions and attorney fees imposed by the trial court in its several orders.

On December 15, 1993 Defendants Jun submitted Answers to Interrogatories but move for deferral that the requirement the sanctions be paid contemporaneously with the Answers to Interrogatories for reasons outlined in their unsigned Affidavit, a signed copy which was subsequently attached. At Record pages 164-165 Paul Jun explains the problems he has had as a result of

not having income and having to defend against this and another suit. The Memorandum of Law in Support of Defendants' Motion to defer Sanction Payments is as included at the Record pages 161 et seq., and outlines the communications, procedural, and geographical problems which had plagued the case for its 8 month life. None of the allegations of the Juns regarding their poverty, travel difficulties and communication difficulties is controverted and yet the judge concluded that they were in fact playing games. This is a decision based on demeanor or without any true demeanor evidence present. Factually, the record is clear that Mr. Jun lost his prestigious position as Pastor as a result of allegedly fraudulent complaints made by Ka Ae Park, Plaintiff herein and others, and as a result could not stay in Utah and had to leave for Korea, was stuck in Korea and could not communicate from Korea without the help of his English speaking daughter who is Argentina and had attempted with all his effort to submit to the Court's jurisdiction and authority. He was unable to do so for factual reasons. This Court will realize that even in his filing of this appeal it was necessary for him to file in forma pauperis; they have no income, no valuables, and that they must appeal this matter. Although there is no reason to suspect that Plaintiff will ever be able to satisfy this judgment because of the damage she has done to the Juns' reputation nationally and internationally, still the judge's ruling sets in concrete the proposition that the Juns had done something improper when in fact they are practically denied by the Court's ruling and their poverty from having the issue litigated

despite the fact that in her own affidavit Plaintiff denied and invalidated the terms of her complaint. Finally, when December 15, 1993 arrived, Defendants were in no better position to pay the \$1,035.00 in sanctions which had accumulated and asked for deferral of these sanctions. This was denied which leads to this appeal.

V.  
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

REQUIRING INDIGENT DEFENDANTS TO PAY SANCTIONS  
PRIOR TO HAVING THEIR ARGUABLY MERITORIOUS CASE  
HEARD RESULTS IN A DENIAL OF DUE PROCESS AND  
EQUAL PROTECTION GUARANTEES TO THEM

This argument is based on the right of due process and equal protection which Defendants Jun should have been able to expect.

In fact, the circumstances of the Juns predicament are uncontroverted. Factually, Mr. Jun was a pastor who lost his position as a result of the complaints of Plaintiff, a parishioner.

Plaintiff had previously stated in an Affidavit that she was "part owner" and not an investor in the business. She sues in this case as an investor.

As a result of her allegations Pastor Jun "lost face" in the community and was terminated from his work. He had no savings and was forced to return to Korea to re-establish himself but found that the implications of his termination in Salt Lake City, Utah had reverberated to Korea and he was unable to make connections there and lived in great poverty and out of communication for several months while the Motion for Sanctions of Plaintiff were being heard. The undersigned was unable to contact them and when he finally did, was able only to develop some unusable statements

which could not be designed into the form necessary to answer the Interrogatories of Plaintiff.

While it is clear that mere inability to proceed for financial reason is not substantial justification for failing to participate in court processes. It is also clear that the court does not favor Default Judgment, especially where there is a good defense. Here a Default was entered. The Default was entered based on the uncontroverted facts that the Juns were unable for financial, geographic and linguistic reasons to conform to the Court.

It was pointed out in a Memorandum submitted to Judge Moffat, the Utah statutory scheme provides practically birth to death protections for persons who find themselves in poverty related situations. This is recognized in the welfare statutes which provides medical assistance to assist birth mothers and indigent families and goes through death. For example in Section 17-5-57 Utah Code Annotated where provision is made for burial of indigent persons.

During the course of an indigent's life tax abatements are provided such as in Section 59-2-1107 Utah Code Annotated and 59-2-1108 providing for abatement and deferral of certain taxes for the poor.

Further, that in the Court systems both at the trial and appellate level impecunious persons may prosecute, defend and appeal any cause in any court in the state by subscribing an affidavit (Section 21-7-3 U.C.A. prescribing the affidavit of impecuniosity).

In addition, the courts provide exemption from collection of debt and according to Russell M. Miller Co. v. Givin, 325 P.2d 908-1958; ". . . exemptions statutes are liberally construed in favor of the debtor to protect him and his family from hardship".

Further, the Court is familiar with the right of criminal defendants who are indigent to be represented Section 77-32-1 U.C.A.

According to 20 C.J.S. COSTS, Section 171 the purpose of the rule allowing indigent persons not to have to pay the costs in judicial proceedings is to insure that no person shall be deprived of the opportunity to have his claim fully adjudicated in a court of law because his indigency prevents him from satisfying costs and bond requirements.

The concepts of equal protection of the laws and due process both stem from the American ideal of fairness and are not mutually exclusive Bolling v. Sharpe, 347 U.S. 497, 98 L.Ed 884.

The Equal Protection Clause requires that all men be afforded equal protection of laws, and any statute or procedure which had the effect of discriminating against defendants solely because they are indigent is Constitutionally impermissible Hazelwood v. State, 524 P.2d 704 (Kan. 1974).

This clause requires that a state appellate system be free of unreasoned distinctions and that indigents have an adequate opportunity to present their claims fairly within the adversarial system.

Thus, Defendants argue that it is an denial of due process and

equal protection in the statutory scheme which protects indigents from conclusions such as these, which conclusions are based strictly on unsupported assumptions and abuse of discretion by the judge, which fly in the face of the uncontroverted evidence in this case.

#### CONCLUSION

From the affidavit of Ka Ae Park (Rd.23-24) and as attached hereto as Appendix B, it is clear that Ka Park had originally believed herself to be a co-owner and investor in the business with Pastor Jun. Shortly after executing this Affidavit, Ka Ae Park decided that she was in fact a creditor of Pastor Jun and brought this suit to collect back her investment. Through her activities Ka Park led to the financial ruination of Pastor Jun and his family and they were required to leave the country because of communications difficulties which developed as a result of these facts, certain deadlines were missed but notice was given to the trial court at all times of the difficulties occasioned by the case and Judge Moffatt was kind enough to set aside his prejudices and presumptions against the Juns, who had not appeared in Court, and allow them to reinstate the case by providing answers to interrogatories and by paying sanctions. The Juns provided the answers to interrogatories but could not afford the sanctions and declared same in an affidavit to the Court. Denying them the right to defer the sanctions and continue prosecuting their case was a denial of equal protection and due process of the law as cited above and, it is appropriate that the Default Judgment be set aside

and the case remanded to the District Court for trial. Having answered the interrogatories, Defendants have placed the matter squarely for trial and the issue of attorney fees and sanctions may not be considered so crucial as to deny the Juns their right to due protection and to protect their reputation and defend against the allegedly fraudulent allegations of Plaintiff.