1994

Ka Ae Park v. Paul K. Jun and Ester Young Ja Jun : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

I. JURISDICTION OF THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS

The Court of Appeals lacks jurisdiction to determine this appeal due to the failure of defendants/appellants Paul K. Jun and Ester Young Ja Jun (hereafter defendants) to file a timely notice of appeal. Had defendants timely filed their notice of appeal, the court would have proper appellate jurisdiction pursuant to Utah Code Ann. §§ 78-2-2(4) and 78-2a-3(2)(k).

II. STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Does this court lack jurisdiction to determine this appeal due to defendants' failure to file a timely notice of appeal?

2. If jurisdiction is proper, did the district court abuse its discretion by denying defendants' request to defer their payment of an amount imposed by the court as a condition to granting defendants relief from the judgment previously entered against them? The standard of review is whether the district court's ruling has no reasonable basis, Crookston v. Fire Insurance Exchange, 860 P.2d 937 (Utah 1993) or was so unreasonable that it can be classified as arbitrary and capricious, Kunzler v. O'Dell, 855 P.2d 270 (Utah App. 1993).

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action by plaintiff/appellee Ka Ae Park (hereafter plaintiff) to collect an obligation owing from defendants.

B. COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS AND DISPOSITION IN THE COURT BELOW

Following defendants' failure to answer plaintiff's interrogatories, the district court granted plaintiff's motion to compel and required defendants to answer the interrogatories within ten days and to pay plaintiff \$250 plus her attorney's fees incurred in bringing the motion. Following defendants' failure to answer the interrogatories and to pay the sanction imposed by the district court, the court granted appellee's motion for sanctions, struck defendants' answer, dismissed their counterclaim, and entered judgment against them as prayed for in appellee's complaint. Defendants filed a motion for relief from the judgment, and that motion was denied by the district court. Defendants filed a second motion for relief from the judgment which the district court granted, provided that defendants comply fully with two conditions no later than December 15, 1993. Defendants complied with one of the two conditions but failed to comply with the second. By the terms of the district court's order, defendants' failure to comply fully with both conditions by December 15, 1993 meant that their "second motion for relief from judgment or order

shall, without further notice or hearing, be deemed denied and the judgment previously entered shall stand and remain in full force and effect, and no further motion for relief from the judgment and order shall be considered by the court." Defendants filed a motion to defer their obligation to comply with the second condition imposed by the district court. The court denied that motion by order dated February 8, 1994.

C. STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. October 29, 1992 -- Plaintiff filed her complaint initiating the present action. Record (hereafter R.,) at pps. 2 - 10.

2. December 7, 1992 -- Judge Ronald H. Moffat of the Third District Court entered default judgment against defendants. R., at pps. 25 - 28. Later that same day, defendants filed an answer and counterclaim. R., at pps. 19 - 22.

3. January 7, 1993 -- Pursuant to stipulation, Judge Moffat entered an order granting defendants relief from the default judgment. R., at pps. 35 - 37.

4. February 2, 1993 -- Plaintiff served a set of interrogatories on defendants. R., at p. 41.

5. March 26, 1993 -- Plaintiff filed a motion to compel discovery due to defendants' failure to answer plaintiff's

interrogatories, despite a stipulated extension of time to answer. R., at pps. 44 - 48.

6. May 24, 1993 -- The district court entered an order requiring defendants to answer plaintiff's interrogatories within 10 days and to pay the sum of \$250 plus any fees incurred by plaintiff in bringing her motion. R., at pps. 53 - 54. Defendants never opposed plaintiff's motion to compel and never claimed that the court's imposition of the financial sanction was improper due to their impecuniosity.

7. June 10, 1993 -- Plaintiff filed a motion for sanctions due to defendants' failure to comply with the court order requiring them to answer plaintiff's interrogatories within 10 days. In her motion for sanctions, plaintiff requested the court to strike defendants' answer and to render default judgment or to impose such other sanctions as may be appropriate. R., at pps. 60 - 62.

8. July 15, 1993 -- By minute entry, Judge Moffat imposed sanctions for defendants' failure to comply with the court's previous order. The court entered defendants' default and indicated that the counterclaim should be dismissed and judgment granted pursuant to the prayer of plaintiff's complaint. The court further awarded attorney's fees and an additional sum of \$500 as a sanction against defendants. R., at pps. 65 - 66. Defendants never opposed plaintiff's motion for sanctions and never claimed

that imposition of a financial sanction was improper due to their impecuniosity.

9. July 26, 1993 -- Defendants filed a "Motion for Relief From Judgment or Order" with an unsigned affidavit from defendants' counsel. R., at pps. 68 - 70. Defendants did not argue that imposition of the financial sanctions was improper due to their impecuniosity.

10. August 9, 1993 -- Pursuant to the July 15, 1993 minute entry, the Third District Court entered judgment in favor of plaintiff against defendants. R., at pps. 81 - 83.

11. September 9, 1993 -- The district court ruled by minute entry on defendants' motion for relief from judgment or order. The court stated in part as follows:

The Court is convinced that the defendants are simply playing games with the plaintiff and with the Court. This matter has been set aside once and the defendants have totally failed to participate in the pre trial discovery and preparation of this case. The Court sees the current Motion simply as an additional way of forestalling the plaintiff's claims against the defendants. The defendants have been afforded more than sufficient opportunity to protect their interest in this matter but have failed to do so and it appears to this Court have done so wilfully. Under the circumstance [sic] the Court has not choice [sic] and believes it is only fair and equitable to deny the Motion.

R., at pps. 88 - 89.

12. September 20, 1993 -- Defendants filed a second motion for relief from judgment or order. R., at pps. 91 - 124.

Defendants never argued that imposition of the financial sanctions was improper due to their impecuniosity.

13. November 15, 1993 -- The district court entered an order with respect to defendants' second motion for relief from judgment or order that provided in part as follows:

Provided defendants comply fully with the conditions set forth below no later than December 15, 1993, their second motion for relief from judgment or order dated July 26, 1993 shall be granted and defendants shall be granted relief from the judgment previously entered herein on August 9, 1993.

The two conditions the court imposed were that defendants provide full and complete answers to the outstanding interrogatories and that they pay plaintiff the sum of \$1,335 in attorney's fees and sanctions. The order further stated as follows:

If defendants have not fully complied with both conditions set forth above by December 15, 1993, defendants' second motion for relief from judgment or order shall, without further notice or hearing, be deemed denied and the judgment previously entered shall stand and remain in full force and effect, and no further motion for relief from the judgment and order shall be considered by the court.

R., at pps. 138 - 140.

14. December 15, 1993 -- Defendants submitted their answers to the outstanding interrogatories but failed to pay any of the \$1,335 the court had ordered them to pay as a condition to obtaining relief from the default judgment. Defendants filed a "Motion to Defer Payment of Sanctions" and an unsigned affidavit of

defendant Paul K. Jun and argued for the first time that "through no fault of their own, [defendants] exhausted their capital and are unable to pay the sanction amount." R., at pps. 141 - 152.

15. By minute entry, Judge Moffat ruled on defendants' motion to defer payment of sanctions. The minute entry stated in part as follows:

The motion is denied. The court is of the opinion that the allegations of reasons for failure to satisfy the sanctions which were imposed are not sufficient. In addition the court notes that this case has been one continual delay after another on behalf of the defendants and the court has little faith in the credibility of the allegations of the defendants. It should be further noted that the affidavit of Paul K. Jun as filed with the court is neither signed nor notarized and therefore is legally not sufficient and cannot be considered.

R., at pps. 166 - 168.

16. February 8, 1994 -- The district court entered an order denying defendants' motion to defer payment of sanctions. R., at pps. 170 - 171.

17. March 10, 1994 -- Defendants filed an ex parte motion to extend the time to file their notice of appeal. R., at p. 172.

18. April 11, 1994 -- Defendants filed their notice of appeal. R., at pps. 174 - 175.

IV. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. Defendants failed to file a timely notice of appeal, and this court lacks jurisdiction to determine the appeal.

2. Defendants may not raise an equal protection argument for the first time on appeal.

3. This court should not consider the conclusory arguments of defendants involving pivotal issues made without citation to any cases of any significance.

4. The district court did not abuse its discretion in denying defendants' request to defer payment of sanctions imposed by the court.

V. ARGUMENT

POINT I

THIS COURT LACKS JURISDICTION SINCE DEFENDANTS' NOTICE OF APPEAL WAS NOT TIMELY FILED

Defendants failed to file a timely notice of appeal of any final, appealable order. This court lacks jurisdiction and should dismiss this appeal.

Rule 3 of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure states that an appeal may be taken "from all final orders and judgments" of the district court by filing a notice of appeal "within the time allowed by Rule 4." Rule 4 requires the notice of appeal to be filed "within 30 days after the date of entry of the judgment or order appealed from."

Following entry of the judgment against them on August 9, 1993, defendants filed two post-judgment motions for relief under Rule 60(b). An order denying relief under Rule 60(b) is a final appealable order. Amica Mutual Insurance Co. v. Schettler, 768 P.2d 950 (Utah App. 1989). Under Rules 3 and 4, defendants had 30 days after the denial of their second motion for relief to file their notice of appeal.

Pursuant to the terms of the district court's November 15, 1993 order, defendants' second motion for relief was deemed denied on December 15, 1993 when defendants failed to comply fully with the two conditions imposed by the court for granting relief from the judgment. The order stated as follows:

Provided defendants comply fully with the conditions set forth below no later than December 15, 1993, their second motion for relief from judgment or order dated July 26, 1993 shall be granted....

If defendants have not fully complied with both conditions set forth above by December 15, 1993, defendants' second motion for relief from judgment or order shall, without further notice or hearing, be deemed denied and the judgment previously entered shall stand and remain in full force and effect, and no further motion for relief from the judgment and order shall be considered by the court.

R., at pps. 138 - 140.

Defendants did not file their notice of appeal until April 11, 1994, long after the 30-day period for filing a notice of appeal

had elapsed.¹ Defendants having failed to file a timely notice of appeal with respect to the order denying their second Rule 60(b) motion for relief, this court lacks jurisdiction to hear the appeal of that order.

Defendants claim that the order they are appealing is the order of February 8, 1994 denying their motion to defer payment of sanctions and that their notice of appeal was, therefore, timely filed. That order is not, however, a final, appealable order. The rights of the parties had already been fully resolved by the denial of defendants' second motion for relief from judgment. Their motion to defer the payment of sanctions and the order denying that motion were merely tangential to the essential issues between the parties. The order denying defendants' motion to defer payment of sanctions has none of the indicia of a final, appealable order. See generally 47 Am Jur. 2d, Judgments, §1053. See also Hase v. Hase, 775 P.2d 943 (Utah App. 1989) where the court held that an order that "wholly disposed of all remaining claims between the parties" constituted the final order from which an appeal could be taken and that a later consolidated decree and order merely

¹Under Rule 4(e) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure, as late as February 14, 1994 defendants could have also requested the trial court for an extension of time to file their notice of appeal. They did not file their ex parte motion for an extension until March 10, 1994. The late motion and the trial court's order pursuant to that late motion should be ignored in determining whether defendants filed a timely notice of appeal.

reiterating what the court had previously ordered could not be used to extend the time for appeal. Id., at p. 945.²

Defendants did not file a timely notice of appeal of any final, appealable order or judgment. This court lacks jurisdiction to hear this appeal and should dismiss it.

POINT II

THIS COURT SHOULD NOT CONSIDER DEFENDANTS' EQUAL PROTECTION ARGUMENT RAISED FOR THE FIRST TIME ON APPEAL

Defendants' brief contains an argument based on the Equal Protection Clause of the United States Constitution. This argument was not presented in the district court and should be disregarded by this court.

At no point in the district court proceedings did defendants ever raise an argument based on the Equal Protection Clause of the United States Constitution. It is axiomatic that an issue not raised in the trial court will not be addressed by the appellate court. E.g., Wurst v. Department of Employment Security, 818 P.2d 1086 (Utah App. 1991) (Stating that the reviewing court will not address an issue raised for the first time on appeal.)

²Likewise, defendants' motion to defer payment of sanctions is not one of the motions enumerated in Rule 4(b) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure which extend the time for filing the notice of appeal until after the denial of such a motion.

Defendants failed to present any argument to the district court regarding the Equal Protection Clause. Their argument on that issue, raised for the first time on appeal, should be disregarded.

POINT III

THIS COURT SHOULD NOT CONSIDER
DEFENDANTS' CONCLUSORY ARGUMENTS
MADE WITH VIRTUALLY NO CITATION
TO ANY CASES OF ANY SIGNIFICANCE

Like their arguments presented to the trial court in support of their motion to defer payment of sanctions, defendants in their brief present only conclusory arguments not supported by any cases of any significance. Their argument should be disregarded and their appeal dismissed.

Defendants have attempted to raise serious issues regarding due process and equal protection and their application to allegedly impecunious parties allegedly unable to pay sanctions imposed by the court. Defendants' argument, however, is merely conclusory in nature and totally devoid of any meaningful citation to relevant cases, leaving both opposing counsel and this court to speculate as to the basis and legal authority of their claims.

This court has stated that it will not consider conclusory arguments on pivotal issues made by parties to an appeal without citation to either the record or applicable case law. Marchant v. Park City, 771 P.2d 677 (Utah App. 1991). Defendants' argument in

this case presents such a situation, and this court should not consider the conclusory argument set forth by defendants in their brief. The court should dismiss the appeal.

POINT IV

THE DISTRICT COURT DID NOT
ABUSE ITS DISCRETION
IN DENYING DEFENDANTS' MOTION
TO DEFER PAYMENT OF SANCTIONS

As set forth under Point I above, this court lacks jurisdiction to hear this appeal. Even if the court has jurisdiction, however, it should affirm the district court's order denying defendants' motion to defer payment of sanctions as a proper exercise of the district court's discretion.

An abuse of discretion occurs when there is "no reasonable basis for the [district court's] decision", Crookston v. Fire Insurance Exchange, 860 P.2d 937, 938 (Utah 1993) or where the court's ruling "is so unreasonable that it can be classified as arbitrary and capricious", Kunzler v. O'Dell, 855 P.2d 270, 275 (Utah App. 1993).

The facts of this case plainly demonstrate that the trial court had ample reason to deny defendants' request to defer paying the sanctions previously imposed by the court and did not abuse its discretion. Defendants had a long history of, as the district court put it, "playing games" (R., at p. 88) and ignoring their obligation to respond appropriately to discovery requests and court

orders. By the time it ruled on defendants' motion to defer payment of sanctions, the court was well justified in its conclusion that it had "little faith in the credibility of the allegations of the defendants." R., at p. 166.

Even if the defendants' allegations of impecuniosity were believable and legitimate, impecuniosity alone should not be a sufficient basis for relieving recalcitrant and neglectful parties from proper sanctions imposed by the court for the parties' failure to respond to prior court orders. Even impecunious litigants who file an affidavit of impecuniosity pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 21-7-3 are not relieved of all financial burdens with respect to litigation. E.g., Roberts v. Erickson, 851 P.2d 643 (Utah 1993) (The fees and costs excused by the filing of an affidavit of impecuniosity do not include the costs of preparing transcripts.)

The trial court did not abuse its discretion in denying defendants' motion to defer payment of sanctions. The court should affirm the district court's denial of that motion.